

Overton Community Pool Refurbishment Review                                                                          2nd October 2023

Since 2020 the Refurb group, in its various guises, has spent hundreds of hours trying to move the refurbishment forward and in seeking funding. Over time, we have considered every aspect of the works including 

· A deck level pool or a pool similar to the existing?
· Would we have to comply fully with PWTAG?
· How would this impact on an ungraded filtration system? 
· Could we fit what we would need into the existing plant room?
· What elements could we include in a new filtration system, for example, could we afford to include UV treatment?
· What could be achieved within the constraints posed by the existing drainage and electrical capacities?
· What could be achieved within the anticipated funding – could we do it in one go; would we have to split it over two seasons; would we have to delay the whole thing until funding became available?

There were so many unknowns that it was difficult to see a clear way forward. However, we got to the stage where we went out to tender to a number of pool companies with a design prepared with help from Pool Plant Experts (PPE).

We received no useful response from this round of tendering.  

PPE had helped us throughout, aways finding time to answer questions and suggest solutions. We also visited two of the pools PPE had been involved with and were impressed with what we saw.

At some point, after the very successful crowd funding campaign, we became involved with Sport England and its consultants. The consultants carried out feasibility studies and sought confirmation of several matters. A major concern has always been what causes the daily water leakage from the pool. The Refurb group has lifted a number of flagstones over time and has found a number of voids, but has not been able to identify a specific cause of the leakage. To assist the consultants, we undertook

· A CCTV survey of the drainage system
· An assessment of the available electricity supply
· A watertightness check of pool structure and
· Site investigation by boreholes and compaction tests

The time taken to do all of this was frustrating. However, it revealed several issues

1)	There is a partial blockage in the sewer that takes waste from the changing rooms. It lies in the wooded no man’s land between the pool and the road, which is part of the school grounds. It serves the houses north of the pool and our changing rooms before picking up the school’s drainage and is therefore either their responsibility or the responsibility of Southern Water, as it is a shared system. However, because the blockage is above any outlet from the school and therefore does not affect it.

2)	The existing electrical supply will not accommodate the plant installation proposed by the consultants.

3)	The pool below the level of the inlets doesn’t lose water other than by evaporation. The leakage we suffer on a daily basis must therefore be caused by leakage in the pipework to the skimmers and inlets or by syphonic action back through the inlets, all of which will be replaced during the refurbishment.

4)	The site investigation found no specific cause of leakage, but did identify that the backfill material surrounding the pool is poorly compacted and cannot support the loads required by a new plant room and filtration system and, in the long term, even the pool surround paving. This applies to around 1.8m depth of material above the underlying chalk. It will require either removal and replacement with properly compacted material, or stabilisation by means of injection with resinous material. 

The consultants’ initial feasibility was funded directly by Sport England, who also awarded us a grant of £20k ostensibly to fund the project through to tender. The forgoing works culminated in the consultants providing a preliminary design package, together with a fee proposal covering the remainder of the pre-construction phase and the construction phase itself, for approximately £180k.
 
Up to this point all of our expenditure has been covered by grants, so we haven’t spent any of our own capital.

Our main issue with Sport England’s consultants was always that we didn’t feel that they listened to us. We felt that their approach was always disproportionate to our situation and our requirements and appeared to focus on suggesting a gold plated solution more suited to an all year round spa pool. So, when their fee proposal came in at such an excessive amount and included a time frame whereby we would not even go out to tender until 2024, it was time for a major rethink.

During this latter period we had also been preparing and had submitted an application for funding from the Community Ownership Fund. This included estimates for all aspects of the works from a variety of sources. For the main element, the new filtration system, the consultants obtained estimates from eight pool companies (and took the average) and we also had a price from PPE. 

We considered

· our responsibilities as Trustees, to make decisions in the best interests of the Club,
· the delay that had already been incurred and the further delay that was now proposed,
· the concern expressed by the pool plant operators at the prospect of having to keep the existing filtration system going for another season and consequently
· the desire, at this late stage, to make progress with the refurbishment without impacting on the 2024 season.

We concluded that the Club’s interests would be best served by moving to a largely design and build procurement strategy. PPE’s estimate used in the COF submission was within the range of prices on which Abacus based their estimate and we were confident in their ability to deliver the scheme. They were therefore our preferred supplier.

[bookmark: _GoBack]However, we still needed a structural engineer to take the design to a level that could be submitted for Building Regulations approval. PPE gave us a contact with whom they had worked with before. Unfortunately, he was on holiday in Greece and was impossible to contact for quite some time. We also need a builder to demolish the existing plant room and to build the new one. We asked a few local builders to price one of Abacus’s options, to identify a preferred builder.

We have now received the excellent news from the COF, that our application has been accepted in full. That has removed any financial constraints from the scheme, barring any catastrophe during construction. 

Now that we have the COF funding we have closed the Sport England grant facility, with thanks.

There are a number of preconstruction obstacles for us to overcome before work can start,
there is a lot of work to be carried out in a short space of time and we are working very hard to get everything done for Season 2024.
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